ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVMM TTEE
March 20, 2008
8:06 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Represent ati ve Bob Roses, Vice Chair
Representati ve John Coghill
Representati ve Kyl e Johansen
Representative Crai g Johnson
Represent ati ve Andrea Dol |
Representati ve Max G uenberg

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 353
“"An Act relating to the blocking of certain Internet sites at
public libraries and to library assistance grants."”

- MOVED CSHB 353( STA) QUT OF COW TTEE

SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BI LL NO 261

“"An Act establishing a program of public funding for the
financing of election canpaigns of candidates for state elected
offices, to be known as the C ean Elections Act."

- FAILED TO MOVE QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 266
"An Act relating to the approval and adm nistration of child
care services by the Departnment of Administration primarily for
the benefit of state officers and enployees; and providing for
an effective date."

- MOVED CSHB 266( STA) OQUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 366
"An Act relating to an exenption from public disclosure of

certain appropriations from the dividend fund; and providing for
an effective date.™

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 20, 2008



- MOVED HB 366 OUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 412

“"An Act relating to the nenbership of the Al aska Legislative
Council and the nenbership of the Legislative Budget and Audit
Commttee."

- BILL HEARI NG POSTPONED

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 23

Proposi ng anmendnments to the Uniform Rules of the Al aska State
Legislature relating to wthdrawing neasures, to sponsors of
measures, to prefiling measures, and to the three readings of
bills.

- Bl LL HEARI NG POSTPONED
HOUSE BI LL NO. 402
"An Act relating to elections; relating to the definition of
"political party'; and providing for an effective date."
- Bl LL HEARI NG POSTPONED
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 353

SHORT TI TLE: PUBLI C LI BRARY | NTERNET FI LTERS
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) KELLER

02/ 06/ 08 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
02/ 06/ 08 (H) STA, FIN

02/ 28/ 08 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 28/ 08 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 28/ 08 (H) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 04/ 08 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 04/ 08 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 04/ 08 (H) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 06/ 08 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 06/ 08 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 06/ 08 (H) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 18/ 08 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 18/ 08 (H) <Bil|l Hearing Reschedul ed to 03/20/08>
03/ 20/ 08 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 261
SHORT TITLE: PUBLI CALLY FI NANCED ELECTI ONS
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) LEDOUX

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 20, 2008



05/ 15/ 07 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
05/ 15/ 07 (H STA, JUD, FIN

01/ 25/ 08 (H SPONSCR SUBSTI TUTE | NTRODUCED
01/ 25/ 08 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 25/ 08 (H) STA, JUD, FIN

02/ 21/ 08 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 21/ 08 (H Heard & Held

02/ 21/ 08 (H) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 06/ 08 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 06/ 08 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 15/ 08 (H STA AT 11: 00 AM CAPI TCL 106

03/ 15/ 08 (H Heard & Held

03/ 15/ 08 (H M NUTE( STA)

03/ 20/ 08 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 266
SHORT TI TLE: STATE EMPLOYEE DEPENDENTS CHI LD CARE CTRS
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) KERTTULA

01/ 04/ 08 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 4/ 08

01/ 15/ 08 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 15/ 08 (H STA, HES, FIN

03/ 18/ 08 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 18/ 08 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 20/ 08 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 366
SHORT TITLE: DI SCLOSURE : APPROPRI ATI ONS FROM PFD FUND
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) CRAWFORD

02/ 13/ 08 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 13/ 08 (H) STA, FIN
03/ 20/ 08 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE WES KELLER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 353 as prine sponsor.

SUZANNE HANCOCK, St af f
Representative Gabriell e LeDoux
Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 20, 2008



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 261 on
behal f of Representative LeDoux, prinme sponsor.

REPRESENTATI VE BETH KERTTULA

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced HB 266 as prinme sponsor.

LEAH CARPENETI, Staff

Representative Beth Kerttul a

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the hearing on HB
266 on behalf of Representative Kerttula, prine sponsor.

FATE PUTMAN, Assistant Busi ness Manager/ Legi sl ative Lobbyi st

Al aska State Enpl oyees Associ ation/ Anerican Federation of State,
County and Muni ci pal Enpl oyees (ASEA/ AFSCMVE) Local 52

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 266.

REPRESENTATI VE HARRY CRAWFORD
Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 366 as prine sponsor.

DEBBI E RI CHTER, Director

Central Ofice

Per manent Fund Di vi dend Divi sion

Depart ment of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the hearing on HB
366.

JERRY BURNETT, Legislative Liaison, Drector,

Adm ni strative Services Division

Departnent of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
366.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Conmttee

nmeeting to order at 8:06:08 AM Representati ves Roses,
Johansen, Johnson, and Lynn were present at the call to order.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 20, 2008



Representatives Coghill, Guenberg, and Doll arrived as the
nmeeti ng was in progress.

HB 353- PUBLI C LI BRARY | NTERNET FI LTERS

8:07: 08 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the first order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 353, "An Act relating to the blocking of certain
Internet sites at public libraries and to library assistance
grants.”

[Before the committee as a work draft, adopted on 3/6/08, was
the commttee substitute (CS) for HB 353, Version 25-LS1356\M
Banni ster, 3/5/08.]

8:07:10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE WES KELLER, Al aska State Legislature, presented
HB 353 as prinme sponsor. He cited two sentences of a handout
entitled, "Fact Sheet Wb Filtering," prepared by the Departnent
of Admi nistration [included in the commttee packet], which read
as follows [original punctuation provided]:

HB 353 contenplates securing independent internet
connectivity in libraries throughout the State. Wth
such i ndependent connecti ons, an end- poi nt honme
solution, such as NetNanny, Norton Internet Security
or WebWatcher for  $60-$100 per station would
acconplish the goals sought in HB 353.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER enphasized that HB 353 does not address
the standard of filtering, but presunmes that librarians care
about the children of Al aska. He characterized filtering as an
i nexpensi ve saf eguard.

8:09: 29 AM

CHAIR LYNN stated his understanding that a filter can be set at
any level of protection, and he surm sed that a password would
be used.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER related his understanding that that is

correct. He added that filters are available at Wal-Mart and
are user friendly.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 20, 2008



CHAIR LYNN clarified that the purpose of the proposed
legislation is to require filters in libraries, but the level at
which the filter is set would be left up to the managenent of
each |ibrary. He remi nded the conmittee that Version M of the
bill exenmpts the University of Alaska library system from the
proposed required filters, because the nmajority of its users are
adul ts.

8:11:41 AM
REPRESENTATI VE ROSES reviewed that at the prior bill hearing,
there had been testinmony from librarians of wmany |ibraries

across the state that there is no need for filters, because
children use a separate section of the library close to the
librarians' station where they are constantly being nonitored.
He recalled that there had been discussion about having an
amendnent to the bill t hat would allow "Dbl ocking"” or
"monitoring” so that the legislation would not hanper those
libraries that were already nonitoring their equi pnment .
Representative Roses spoke of testinmony from [two |ibrarians
from Tok, Alaska], during which they had enphasized that having
to add filters to the library may result in the closing of the
library.

8:13:59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES noved to adopt Anendnent 1, which read as
follows [original punctuation provided]:

Page 1, line 1, follow ng "bl ocking":
| nsert "or nonitoring"

Page 1, line 11, following "filters":
| nsert "or nonitoring"

Page 1, line 13, follow ng "shall":
I nsert "(1)"

Page 1, line 14, followng "AS 11.61.128(1)(A - (F)"
I nsert "; or
(2) use an alternate nonitoring system to
prevent the viewing of Internet sites that depict the

itens described in AS 11.61.128(1)(A) - (F)"

Page 2, line 3:
Del ete "technol ogy neasure

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 20, 2008



I nsert "Internet software filter for the adult or
not use the alternate nonitoring systent

Page 2, following line 5:
I nsert a new paragraph to read:

"(2) "alternate nonitoring systenmt neans a
nmonitoring system that does not use Internet software
filters; in this paragraph, "monitoring systent

i ncludes a nethod that enables public library staff to
see the screens of conputers in the public library;™

Renunber the follow ng paragraph accordingly.
REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL obj ected for discussion purposes.
REPRESENTATI VE ROSES spoke to Anendnent 1.

8:15:40 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL said she supports the anmendnent, but does
not support the bill. She remarked that if the anmendnent is
adopted, there is no longer any point to the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES said that was his first reaction to
Amendnent 1; however, he explained that it would allow libraries
the option, without a trenendous anount of additional expense
to relocate their conputers to separate the areas where adults
and children use conputers. In response to a question from
Chair Lynn, he said the bill would mandate l|ibraries to use
filters or lose funding, which is why Amendnent 1 is necessary
to give |libraries another option.

8:18:16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER concurred wth Representative Doll and
spoke agai nst Amendnent 1, which he said provides no definition
of "rmonitoring".

CHAIR LYNN echoed Representative Doll's remark that Amendnent 1
would kill the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES, in response to Representative Keller,
poi nted out that Amendnment 1 does define "alternate nonitoring
systenmt in the proposed |anguage that would be added to Page 2,
followwng line 5 [text provided previously].

8:19:33 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 20, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL renoved his objection to Anendnent 1. He
said the bill sponsor's intent is to prevent the view ng of
Internet sites that show itenms described in AS 11.61.128(1)(A)-
(F), and Anmendrnent 1 would allow for nonitoring to prevent that
same vi ew ng

8:21: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG objected to Anmendnment 1. He war ned
that Amendment 1 could cause controversy between the state and

small libraries. He said, "W're going to be faced with a |arge
| oss of revenue." He nentioned information from Ms. Berg [who
testified at the previous bill hearing] that shows that in

Chi ni ak, population 52, the total operating revenue is $6, 350
and the anobunt of state grants equals $6, 250. He said, "They

wll have to shut down if sonebody finds that they're not
totally nonitoring this stuff.” Representative G uenberg stated
that the second reason he opposed Amendnent 1 is "because this
legislation is tied into the crimnal code ..., and at |east
potentially, this <could render |librarians and their staff
liable, as accessories, at least, to a felony." He said
libraries may not have to buy blocking, but they will have to

use staff time, and "there is not a dine put into this."
8:22: 37 AM

A roll call vote was taken. Represent ati ves Johansen, Johnson
Doll, Roses, and Coghill wvoted in favor of Anmendnment 1.
Representati ves Gruenberg and Lynn voted against it. Therefore,
Amendnent 1 passed by a vote of 5-2.

8:23:31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noved to report CSHB 353, Version 25-
LS1356\M Bannister, 3/5/08, as anended, out of commttee wth
i ndi vi dual recommendati ons and t he acconpanyi ng fiscal notes.

8:23:43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL objected. She said she sees the bill as the
state intruding even nore into the businesses of municipalities
and individuals, and even though the bill has been "softened,"
she cannot, on principle, support it.

8:23:46 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 20, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL di sagreed that the bill was softened. He

said he thinks the requirenent is still in place for a system of
monitoring in order to obtain grant nonies. Furthernore, he
said, "Even though you reference a crimnal code for the
description of the pornography, this is just based on granting,
and so, | don't anticipate there would be any crimnal code
i ssues. "

8:24.57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG responded that AS 11.61.128 could
render i brari ans and their st af f i abl e to crim nal
prosecuti on.

8:25:26 AM

A roll call vote was taken. Represent ati ves Johnson, Roses,
Coghill, and Lynn voted in favor of noving CSHB 353, Version 25-
LS1356\M Bannister, 3/5/08, as anended, out of conmttee.
Representatives G uenberg, Doll, and Johansen voted against it.

Therefore, CSHB 353(STA) was reported out of the House State
Affairs Standing Conmttee by a vote of 4-3.

The conmm ttee took an at-ease from 8:26:24 AMto 8:28: 05 AM

HB 261- PUBLI CALLY FI NANCED ELECTI ONS

8:28:19 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the next order of business was SPONSOR
SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BILL NO 261, "An Act establishing a
program of public funding for the financing of election
canpai gns of candidates for state elected offices, to be known
as the Clean Elections Act."

[Before the commttee as a work draft, adopted on 3/15/08, was
committee substitute (CS) for SSHB 261, Version 25-LS0929\M
Bul l ard, 2/21/08.]

8:28:22 AM

CHAI R LYNN cl osed public testinony.

8:28:43 AM

SUZANNE HANCOCK, Staff, Representative Gabrielle LeDoux, Al aska
State Legislature, testified during the hearing on SSHB 261 on

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -9- March 20, 2008



behal f of Representative LeDoux, prine sponsor. For the benefit
of Chair Lynn, who had been absent during previous neetings'
di scussions of SSHB 261, she reviewed the bill sponsor's
i nvol venent at those neetings.

8:29:46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said he was | ukewarm on the proposed bil
until a couple days ago when a special interest group in
Virginia ran an add in Anchorage with his nane in it that
claimted he is a corrupt | egi slator because of a "no
recommendati on” vote he made on a bill. He said there is not a
ot he can do about it. He spoke of the possibility of not

being able to fight off a well-funded group with public funds
and the ability of a group to raise noney to attack an

i ndi vi dual . He remarked, "If they're attacking ne for a vote |
haven't made, inmagine what they're going to do for the votes |
have nade." He offered his understanding that the group in

Virginia has not registered with the Alaska Public Ofices
Comm ssion (APOCC) and there is no way to trace where its noney
comes from He clarified:

Where ny opposition to this bill was slight before, it
is now beconme vehenent. | ..., and the people that
support ny points of views, need the ability to assi st
me in fighting this outside attack, and | don't see
any other way we can do it with public funds. And
unless this bill takes a serious turn and either
elimnates third-party expenditures or seriously
curtails third-party expenditures, there's no way |
can even support it.

CHAIR LYNN said the issue to which Representative Johnson
referred is related to aerial wolf hunting and has absolutely
nothing to do with "these other issues.”

8:32: 58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES said the bill does address the issue that
Representative Johnson brought up. He added, "Quite frankly,
the way it addresses it is even scarier than the process.” He
conti nued:

If an independent expenditure occurs in a canpaign,
and you feel as the <candidate - and vyou are
participating in the Cean Elections process - that
you have been wronged, you have the ability to appea

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 10- March 20, 2008



to the ... admnistrator of the Cean Elections
process, and require themw thin two days to detern ne
whet her or not you've been wonged by this third-party
expendi t ure.

If indeed the determination is that you have been,
then they have to match whatever anmount of noney was
spent to attack you or to support the candidate
runni ng against you, up to three tinmes the allowable

expenditure for the vyear. Vell, what is an
al l owabl e expenditure for the year? In the primry
[el ection] year, it's $17,600. So, three tinmes that
would be $52,800 that could be matched to you as a
candidate if you participate in the Cean Elections
process, because third-party candidates or [politica
action conmttees] (PACs) are working against you or
for the candidate that is opposing you. That's for
the primry. In the general [election] it's three
times $26,400, which is $79, 200.

So, ... are the citizens of this state ready to put
their permanent fund dividends at risk to fund
political canpaigns? Because | can tell vyou right
now, if you take $79,200 and $52,800, ... that's over
$130, 000. If we have 50 ... candidates running
potentially every year. What's the limt? |  nmean

where does this go?

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES said he has seen the ad to which
Representative Johnson referred, and although it does not
mention his own nane, it just as easily could have, since he
sits on the sanme comittee and passed the sane bill out of
comittee. He stated that if he were part of a Cean Elections
process and saw that the entire |legislature had been called

corrupt, he would go to the adm nistrator and say, "I have been
wonged by this ad; | need to defend nyself; this is an
expenditure that qualifies; | need the matching fund."

8:35:29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES stated that the proposed bill does not
address in-kind contributions, and he questioned how the C ean
El ections process would deal with that issue. He enphasized
that there are nunerous issues of concern that he will state for
the record if the bill continues to nove forward. He said the
objective of the bill has not worked in other states that have

tried Clean Elections. There have been states that have passed

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 20, 2008



a Clean Elections Act only to repeal it, and others funded C ean
El ections, then withdrew the funding. He nentioned California's
Proposition 89, regarding Cean Elections, which was failed by
75 percent of those who voted.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES stated that Clean Elections is a serious
issue that has the potential to be costly to the state and to
totally revanp the way Al aska's el ections system works. He said
he thinks the commttee should be exam ning every single report
avai lable regarding Cean Elections to determ ne whether the
information is appropriate and whether or not anmendnents need to

be nade to the bill. He explained that although there are
elenents of the bill that are good and try to reestablish
confidence of the public in the political process, the bill wll
actually unravel the whole process and will not neet its own
obj ecti ve.

8: 37: 53 AM

CHAIR LYNN noted that the bill had been anmended to renove the

reference to Clean Elections fromtitle, and now the title uses
the term "public funding of elections".

8:38: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN stated his opposition to SSHB 261

8:39:24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL expressed appreciation for the coments that
had been made, but said she thinks the issue is one that needs

di scussing and, thus, should make it to the House floor. She
stat ed support for SSHB 261.

8:40: 18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES concurred with Representative Doll's remark
that the bill needs lots of discussion, but said that will not
happen on the House floor in a substantive manner w thout
delving into the aforenentioned reports. He offered further
details.

8:42:12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL said she would support holding the bill if

such a di scussi on woul d be hel d.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 20, 2008



CHAI R LYNN said because of the 90-day session, there is probably
not the tinme available to have this discussion.

8:43: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said he appreciates what Representative
Roses said about public action conmttees. He said he does not
think the bill addresses "the kind of attack that's going on
against us right now " which is why he does not support the
proposed | egi sl ati on.

8:44:10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that SSHB 261 woul d be heard next
by the House Judiciary Standing Conmittee and the House Fi nance
Commttee, so there would be plenty of time to discuss the
I Ssues.

8:44: 26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG nmoved to report the commttee
substitute (CS) for SSHB 261, Ver si on 25- LS0929\ M
Bul | ard/ 2/ 21/ 08, out of conmittee with i ndi vi dua
recommendati ons and t he acconpanyi ng fiscal notes.

8:44:32 AM

REPRESENTATI VES ROSES, JOHNSON, and COGHI LL obj ect ed.

8:44:52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RCSES said he realizes that the legislature is in
a 90-day session and the commttee has |imted schedul ed neeting
tinmes; however, he indicated that he would be wlling to
schedul e additional neeting tinmes to give tine for adequate

di scussion of the bill. He offered to head a public forum

CHAIR LYNN indicated the need to hold Saturday neetings because
of the 90-day session.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES said he also appreciates the fact that the

bill is scheduled to be heard by two other House conmttees. He
stated that when a bill is sent to a commttee on which he sits,
he hopes that the prior conmmttee did a good job working on the
bill before passing it on, rather than sending it on in
fragnents, hoping that the next commttee will put it back
t oget her . He said he thinks the conmttee is rushing the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 13- March 20, 2008



process and using the 90-day session as an excuse. He stat ed,

"I feel like we want to nove this on because it has sone
controversy connected to it. | feel like we're noving it on
because it's a bill that has a lot of difficulty and will garner
a trenendous anount of attention and support. That's exactly

why | can't nove it out of this commttee."
8:47:16 AM

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives G uenberg, Doll,
and Lynn voted in favor of noving CSSSHB 261, Version 25-
LS0929\M Bullard, 2/21/08 out of commttee. Represent ati ves
Roses, Coghi I I, Johansen, and Johnson voted against it.
Therefore, Version M failed to nove out of commttee by a vote
of 3-4.

HB 266- STATE EMPLOYEE DEPENDENTS CHI LD CARE CTRS

8:47: 56 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the next order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 266, "An  Act relating to the approval and
adm nistration of <child care services by the Departnent of
Adm nistration primarily for the benefit of state officers and
enpl oyees; and providing for an effective date.”

8:48: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  BETH  KERTTULA, Al aska State Legi sl ature,
introduced HB 266 as prinme sponsor. She said, "At the heart of
this is the hope that the state can step forward in allow ng
departnments and enployees - if they find it necessary - to have
space for a private contractor to cone in a do childcare.” She
said that [providing that <child care] wuld have a huge
econonmi cal and societal inpact on Al aska. She noted that there
is a commttee substitute available, which clarifies that the
department would actually have to nake a deternmination as to
whether there was a Jlack of availability of «child care
sufficient to justify an approval of a child care center, and
which clarifies that there is "no intent to have any
conpetition.”

8:50:17 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt the proposed commttee
substitute (CS) for HB 266, Version 25-LS0846\E, Wayne/ M schel,

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 20, 2008



3/17/08, as a work draft. There being no objection, Version E
was before the conmttee.

8:50: 36 AM

REPRESENTATI VE = KERTTULA, in response to a question from
Representative G uenberg, noted that the new |anguage added in
Version E is found on page 2, lines 3-6, which read as foll ows:

(b) Before approving the establishment of a
program that provides child care services under AS
39.90. 200 - 39.90.290, the departnent shall review the
avai lability of state-licensed child care services in
the municipality in which the program woul d be | ocated
to determine if there is a lack of availability
sufficient to justify the approval .

8:50: 48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES said although he supports the concept of
the bill, he is concerned that if a child care contractor
allowed into a state building were to "fold," the state would be
responsible for taking over the operation of the child care
center.

8:51: 29 AM

LEAH CARPENETI, Staff, Representative Beth Kerttula, Al aska
State Legislature, on behalf of Representative Kerttula, prine
sponsor of HB 266, directed attention to page 3, lines 3-4,
whi ch read:

(b) Upon  approval of the departnent, t he
sponsoring state agency my be responsible for the
operation of the child care center when

(1) procedures under AS 36.30 fail to
procure a qualified service provider; or

(2) the service provider's contract s
cancelled and attenpts to procure another qualified
service provider are unsuccessful.

MS. CARPENETI explained that there are enough "hoops"” to junp
t hrough and the responsibility would not revert automatically.

8:52:27 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- March 20, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE ROSES referred to a sentence that begins on page
3, line 13, which read:

Nei t her the operator nor any personnel enployed by or
at a child care facility shall be considered to be
enpl oyees of the state unless a state agency operates
the facility under AS 39.90.240(b).

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES said that |anguage concerns him He
acknow edged that plenty of people need child care, but he does
not think the state needs to be in the position of running child

care facilities. He said if the state opens the door to child
care in one place, it will have to do so everywhere across the
st at e.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA said she appreciates Representative
Roses' concern, but it is not the intent of the bill that that
happen. She said the plan uses conponents such as finding a
provi der and departnental decision-mnmaking. She added, "But it
certainly is a policy call for the commttee if you want to
allow that as a fail-safe or not. W did keep it in as an
absol ute last choice."

8:54:18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN nentioned the child care in the Federa
Bui | ding and asked for information pertaining to it.

M5. CARPENETI, in response to questions from Representative
Johansen, noted that HB 266 is nodeled on the federal bill that
made possible the child care facility in Juneau' s Federa
Bui | di ng. She noted that that facility used to be run by an
organi zati on based in Fairbanks, but a few years ago it changed
to a board-run organization. She offered her understandi ng that
the space for the child care facility in the Federal Building is
provided [by the federal governnent]. The proposed |egislation
woul d allow for the state to provide the space or pass the cost
for it along to the independent contractor.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked if there is any possibility that
the federal governnent could end up "on the hook"™ regardi ng any
part of the aforenentioned child care facility.

M5. CARPENETI relayed that all the individual federal agencies
in Juneau's Federal Building conme together to cover the
followng costs of the child care facility: rent, utilities,
and mai nt enance.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 16- March 20, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked for confirmation that the state
woul d not operate the facility but would have a contract with an
organi zation that would operate it.

8:57:25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA pointed out that while not in Juneau, in
other arenas in the country the federal governnent does operate
child care centers.

M5. CARPENETI added that the federal governnent could choose to
operate the child care facility in Juneau's Federal Building if
it wanted to.

8:58: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG directed attention to a "Legislative
Research Report" dated June 19, 2007, [included in the conmttee
packet], which he said shows a trend in the United States to
provide [child care].

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA confirnmed that sonme states do provide
child care

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG observed that at |east 22 states do so.
8:58: 50 AM

M5. CARPENETI, in response to Representative G uenberg, said she
does not know how many private conpanies offer their enployees
child care services, although the nunbers of enployers that do
are increasing. She said the bill sponsor has statistics that
show the positive benefits of onsite child care. She said the
reason for the increase in facilities is because nore and nore
househol ds have "all of the available parents"” in the workforce.
In response to a followup question from Representative
G uenberg, she confirmed that an increasing nunber of conpanies
are offering "pro-famly" or "work |ife" options, which include
not only onsite child care, but also the opportunity to work
from hone. Furthernore, sonme enployers wll buy "slots"™ in
nearby child care facilities for their enployees to use when
their children have sick days, for exanple.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked, "Do you know if the state

provi des that kind of alternative working arrangenent that would
alleviate the need for child care?"

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 20, 2008



M5. CARPENETI replied that she does not believe the state buys

any child care slots. In response to a followup question, she
said she knows an increasing nunber of states are looking into
"options like that," but she said she would have to look into

the matter to find out nore in-depth information.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG renmarked that it certainly makes it
easier for parents to work when states offer options related to
child care. Parents fight a difficult situation if they cannot
get child care or work via teleconmunication. He asked what
kind of financial arrangenent is nmade by states that offer child
care options and whether it is affordable for enployees.

9:01: 59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA of fered her under st andi ng t hat
California and Florida offer a sliding scale fee.

9:02: 28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked if there is any provision in the
state's union contract that would require the state to provide
child care in all its facilities once it offers it in one.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA responded as fol |l ows:

| have no idea, and if that were the case, that would
be a conpletely separate issue from this. This was
inserted into the bill solely as ... the conplete,
| ast option, so that there was sonme stop gap. If the
commttee thinks it's inappropriate to start at this
point with that, we can take it out of the bill and
tal k about it nore. But it was really for the areas
where we know there aren't any child care providers at
this point.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON expl ai ned that he does not want the State
of Alaska to find itself in the position of having to provide
child care statewide, and he would like the record to show that
that would not be the result of the proposed | egislation.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA said she doesn't think the commttee

would not want to preclude "that." She stated her belief that
peopl e shoul d have child care throughout state agencies.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 20, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON sai d he supports the concept of the bill,
but reiterated that he doesn't want the state to end up
responsi ble for paying for child care facilities.

9:05: 27 AM

FATE PUTMAN, Assistant Business Manager/Legislative Lobbyist,
Al aska State Enpl oyees Associ ation/ Arerican Federation of State,
County and WMunicipal Enployees (ASEA/ AFSCME) Local 52, said
there is nothing in the collective bargaining agreenent that
addresses child care facilities in state facilities. He stated,
“I would consider it to be probably a perm ssive subject of
col | ective bargaining. It may be sonmething that in the future
we would want to do, but our intent would be, of course, that
everybody be able to have child <care services in their
facilities." He added, "It wouldn't be sonething that we would
prohi bit anybody el se from doing."

MR.  PUTMAN, in response to Representative Johnson, said he
thinks the idea of collective bargaining is that everyone is
treated the sane.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON concl uded that that neans providing child
care in just one state facility could be an issue.

9:07: 36 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL said she would |like to see the state take
| eadership and offer child care to all its state enployees. She
tal ked about the econom c inpact of parents in the workforce.

CHAIR LYNN said he does not want to expand the bill to include
child care facilities throughout the state.

9:09:13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked how much an enployer's offering
child care increases that enpl oyer's conpetitiveness in
attracting and keepi ng good enpl oyees.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA said the amount of people who have
contacted her office regarding the issue indicates that the
enpl oyer's conpetitiveness would be increased quite a bit. She
said there is research supporting that.

9:09: 50 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- March 20, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON, regarding Representative Doll's point,
said sone legislators want to control the growh of governnent
while others do not. He said although this issue is one that he
woul d want to enbrace, he is not a proponent of increasing the
power of governnment to do a job that the private sector can do.
He stated, "I'm not prepared to nmake the leap that the state
should be every thing to every person.” He said he would
dislike seeing the state putting Juneau's child care facilities
out of business by taking over the role of child care provider.

9:10:49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN said he supports the concept of the
bill, because the benefit of having children nearby their
parents at work is that it is good for enployees' norale and
increases job attractiveness. However, he said he does not

support getting "hooked into having a state-run day care
center."

CHAIR LYNN indicated that he <concurs wth npost of what
Represent ati ve Johansen expressed.

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL opined that the proposed legislation is
i nportant and needs to be passed. She assured fellow conmmttee
menbers that she wants to stay on track and "not nove into the
| arger issues."”

9:13: 31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA clarified that the idea of having a
state agency run the child care is intended only for areas in
which there is no other choice. She proffered that if it is the
commttee's wish to anmend the bill to take out that fail-safe
measure, then the follow ng sections would need to be renoved
fromthe bill: page 3, lines 3-8 and 13-15. She sai d passing
the bill wthout that |anguage would highlight the areas where
the fail-safe was needed, and another bill could be introduced
at that point to address the issue.

9:14:42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES agreed with all of the positive aspects of
the bill mentioned thus far, but enphasized the inportance of
letting the public know that the state would be providing only
the space, not picking up the tab for running the service. He
said his daughter runs a child care facility and the biggest
i ssues she faces are regarding space, utilities, and conplying

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 20, 2008



with state law - not her ability to run the center or hire
enpl oyees.

9:16: 18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES noved to adopt Conceptual Anendnent 1, as
fol | ows:

Page 3, lines 3-8:
Del et e | anguage

Page 3, lines 13-15, followi ng "program":

Delete "Neither the operator nor any personnel
enployed by or at a child are facility shall be
considered to be enployees of the state unless a state
agency operates the facility under AS 39.90.240(b).

REPRESENTATI VE RCSES clarified that the intent of Conceptual
Amendnent 1 is "to renove the fail-safe for the state taking

over the operation.” Even w thout the I|anguage, he said, he
thinks the bill is a valuable asset for state enpl oyees.
9:17:19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG obj ected to Conceptual Anmendnent 1. He
tal ked about the problem the State of Alaska is having in
recruiting and retaining enployees under its latest retirenent
system plan, and he predicted that enployees will quite working
for the state in areas that would have no child care if
Conceptual Anmendnment were to be adopted. He said he views HB
266 as a first neasure in addressing the problem of |ack of
retention. He said he would encourage the state to provide
alternative nethods of working for the state, such as
tel ecomuti ng, because he said Alaska is a state that is mainly
rural .

9:19:40 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES stated that he thinks the proposed
| egislation, even wth the proposed anendnent, wll stil
attract and retain enpl oyees. He explained that t he
proportional cost of child care will be proportionally less in a
state-owned facility, and he said that will attract workers.

9:20: 52 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- March 20, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA said the bill was nuch larger in scope

four years ago and has been streaniined. She expressed
appreciation for the feedback of the commttee, and said she
t hi nks that Representative Roses is correct that the bill, even
wi th Conceptual Anmendnent 1, will serve to attract enployees to
work for the State of Al aska. She said she would prefer the
bill "have a little bit of novenent today," rather than demand

the fail-safe provision be left init.
9:22: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG renoved his objection. There being no
further objection, Conceptual Amendnment 1 was adopt ed.

9:22:27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL asked if the child care offered in the
Federal Building offers a substantial savings to the enployees
with children

9:22:41 AM

M5. CARPENETI indicated that there is a cost savings resulting
from the fact that the rent and utilities are paid for by the
federal governnent and the enployees are charged on a sliding
fee scale, depending on their ability to pay.

CHAIR LYNN remarked that he does not know how much child care
costs.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES proffered that the cost starts at
approxi mately $215 a week per child.

9:23: 35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN said he pays $1,500 a nonth, total, for
his three children's child care.

9:23:55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON i ndi cated that the adoption of Concept ual
Amendnment 1 has increased his already existing support of HB
266.

9:24: 39 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- March 20, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON noved to report (CS) for HB 266, Version

25- LS0846\ E, Wayne/ M schel 3/ 17/ 08, as anended, out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB 266(STA) was

reported out of the House State Affairs Standing Conmttee.

HB 366- DI SCLOSURE : APPROPRI ATI ONS FROM PED FUND

9: 25: 15 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the l|ast order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 366, "An Act relating to an exenption from public
di scl osure of certain appropriations fromthe dividend fund; and
providing for an effective date."

9:25:35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  HARRY  CRAWFORD, Al aska State Legislature,
presented HB 366 as prine sponsor. He said a law that was
passed which took the permanent fund dividend away from those
who are incarcerated had the unintended consequence of taking
child support away fromthe children of those incarcerated. The
proposed | egislation, he explained, would allow those children
to receive that noney.

9:27:46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked if there is any provision in the
bill that would allow the Departnment of Revenue to fill out the
application on behalf of the child if the child s incarcerated,
non- custodi al parent refused or chose not to fill it out.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD responded that those incarcerated are
not able to apply, which is why the bill sets up the ability for
the departnent to provide a grant to the children.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON stated his understanding that the
Department of Corrections would actually have to fill out a form
to get the noney, essentially applying on behalf of the inmate.
He said he supports the concept but wants to ensure the
mechanism is there to ensure there is comunication through the
depart nent.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD reiterated that the bill does not dea

with people who are eligible, but rather those who are
ineligible due to felony or multiple m sdeneanors.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 23- March 20, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON clarified that he is concerned about the
steps the Departnent of Revenue would take in providing the
grant.

9:30: 57 AM

DEBBI E RI CHTER, Di rector, Centr al Ofice, Per manent Fund
Dividend Division, Departnment of Revenue, in response to
Representative Johnson's concern, explained the process. She

said if an incarcerated individual applies for a PFD, he/she is
deni ed. She said the Departnment of Revenue pays the Departnent
of Corrections based on a calculation, which she specified is
not based upon an actual head count.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON stated his assunption that if HB 366
passed, the departnent would apply a simlar calculation to get
the noney to the appropriate people, and there would not be any
real interaction.

M5. RICHTER answered that is correct.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked how the process would actually
wor k.

M5. RICHTER said she is not sure, but was assured by Jerry
Burnett of the Departnment of Revenue that the process would be
dealt with between [the Child Support Services Division] and the
Departnent of Corrections.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said that works for him

9:33: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES stated his support for the concept of bill
al though he indicated that the bill "does nothing for those
children whose parents are incarcerated that aren't receiving
child support.”™ He surmsed that those children need the nopney
just as badly as those under the child support provision. He
guestioned whether - should the bill pass - it would be the

responsibility of the Al aska Permanent Fund Board to determ ne
who the noney gets funneled to, or if the noney would go as a
lunmp sumto be distributed by another entity.

9:34:31 AM

M5. RICHTER, in response to a question from Representative
Johansen, stated +that anyone <can apply for a PFD, but

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- March 20, 2008



incarcerated individuals wll be denied. In response to a
foll owup question, she explained that an application enters the
PFD dat abase and the denial is based on information provided by
t he Departnent of Corrections.

9: 35: 56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL asked why an incarcerated person would apply
i f he/she knows the application wll be denied.

M5. RICHTER replied that she w shes she knew the answer to that.
In response to a question from Representative Doll, she
expl ained that the fornula used to figure out how nmuch DOC gets
"iI's not based on the actual eligible people who are
incarcerated; it is based on the nunmber of people incarcerated."”

9: 36: 56 AM

JERRY BURNETT, Legislative Liaison, Director, Admnistrative
Services Division, Departnent of Revenue, confirnmed Ms. Richter

is correct: the calculation is based on the nunber of people
incarcerated in the prior year, not whether or not they are
el i gi bl e. The distribution between DOC and the Council on

Sexual Assault is done in the budget process and has nothing to
do with the nunber of people incarcerated, he added.

MR. BURNETT, in response to Representative Doll, stated:

| would guess that we'll have a few nore people
incarcerated this year .... The fornula said 10,188
people ... for the 'O07 dividend. It will probably be
nore than that - |I'm guessing nore people are
i ncar cer at ed. The dividend this year wll be sone
anount which, based on current projections, wll be
nore than the '07 [dividend]. So, I"'mthinking we're
dealing with an anobunt of nobney here that's totaling
somewhere near $20 mllion.

If these people were eligible and we were
garnishing them for child support, we could be
potentially garnishing up to $10 mllion from those
i ndi viduals, had they been eligible for dividends and
were able to apply. ... There's ... just over 10,000
people who are ... not eligible, but we don't know if
they would have been eligible if they weren't
i ncarcer at ed.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 25- March 20, 2008



MR. BURNETT noted that "this" wll be effective next year,
"since all the noney is appropriated in the FY 09 budget
al ready. "

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL offered her wunderstanding that there are
5,500 people in the prison systens, so when she hears M.
Burnett say there are 10,000 people, she wonders "where these
peopl e are.™

MR. BURNETT said he could not say exactly where the people are.
He noted that he used to serve the admnistrative director of
the Department of Corrections, and therefore can say that there
are a nunber of people who are incarcerated for short periods of
time during any year or were incarcerated in previous years.
The average sentence length is not multiple years; therefore

nunbers can be easily run up to as many as 40,000 people who may
be in and out of prisons in a year. He concluded, "So, ... a
count at any tine is not representative of the nunber of people
who are in and out of the prison system"”

9:40: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked if the grants to mnor children of
incarcerated individuals would equal the amount of the PFD in
any given year.

MR. BURNETT said the proposed |egislation does not nake that
cl ear.

REPRESENTATI VE COCGHILL stated the need to clarify that issue
He asked how a mnor child of an incarcerated individual is
f ound.

MR. BURNETT said the Departnent of Revenue's Child Support
Services Division has a case on alnbst every child who has been
subject to child support in Alaska, and the division has
identified approximately "5,000 of the 10,000 here."

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked if the expectation is that the
grant would be automatic or that there would be an application
process invol ved.

MR. BURNETT replied that the departnment has not really spent
much tine related to how this would really work, but since a
case is set up for each child, the anount of noney going to the
children is known, as is the anount of debt from the parents.
He made a point of noting, "This does not off-set the debt of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- March 20, 2008



the incarcerated parent in any way." He said he thinks the
process would be a fairly sinple one.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked the bill sponsor if his intent is
that the grant would be equivalent to a dividend or if it would
be in place of a designated child support anount.

9:42: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD answered it would replace the anount of
t he divi dend.

CHAIR LYNN commented that a lot of children should be getting
child support but do not.

MR. BURNETT responded that if an application was made, those
children would be eligible for child support, and a case could
be established. He clarified, "Anyone who's incarcerated,
there's an automatic mninum child support due from them on a
nonthly basis of $50 for a child."

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL, in response to a question from Chair
Lynn, explained that he is satisfied to have on the record that
the intent of the sponsor is to nake the grant be the anount of
t he dividend for that year.

9:44: 33 AM
MR. BURNETT told Representative Coghill:

VWhat we would do if this bill were to pass is we would
devel op a program - regulations with that anount - and
then, during the budget process, for the FY 10 budget,
we would go to OVMB and propose that the noney be
split, so that that nuch noney goes to the child
support grant program [and] that the rest goes to
Corrections and [the] Council on Donestic Violence and
Sexual Assault.

9:45:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked if a child could apply on behalf of
an adul t.

MR. BURNETT answered no, since the parent incarcerated would not
be eligible for a dividend.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- March 20, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE ROSES explained that he asked the question
because although it easy to define who is receiving child
support, it is not easy to find those that are not receiving
child support. Representative Roses asked if a person can apply
on behalf of a disabled parent who cannot apply for himherself.

MR. BURNETT responded yes. He enphasized the difference in this
case is that [incarcerated parents] are not eligible for
di vi dends.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked, "But this would ... allow the child
to be eligible for what would have been theirs had they been
eligible, correct?"

MR. BURNETT replied:

This method ... goes around the statute in a sense

and allows that child to ... receive that noney,
which, if their parent were not incarcerated and were
eligible, we would be garnishing. We garnish 100
percent of dividends for people who have child support
arrear ages. There is no limtation on our
gar ni shnent s.

9:47: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL stated his wunderstanding that for an
incarcerated parent, "this could be in lieu of child support,"”
but a custodial parent could still apply on behalf of a child

for the child' s dividend, in which case he/she would get the
di vi dend.

MR. BURNETT responded that the child would still get his/her
di vidend, but in the event that a child does not get a dividend
by the time he/she turns 18, because no one has applied on
hi s/ her behalf, the child has two years after the 18th birthday
to apply for all past dividends.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said, "I just want it to be very clear
that this is not replacing a dividend, but [is] in lieu of child
support - equivalent to a dividend."

MR. BURNETT replied that that is essentially correct. He added:

Al though, it does not relieve the non-custodial parent
who is incarcerated of any of their responsibilities.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- March 20, 2008



CHAI R LYNN cl osed public testinony.
9:49: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL noved to report HB 366 out of committee
with individual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal
notes. There being no objection, HB 366 was reported out of the
House State Affairs Standing Conmttee.

9:49: 42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN reported on the work of the House State
Affairs Standing Commttee's subconmittee assigned to study
bills related to the issue of conflict of interest. He reported
that there is as yet no recomendation for the full conmttee.

ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
9:52:24 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 29- March 20, 2008



